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From: John O"Brien | HW Planning
To: "Michelle Ryan"
Cc: Harry Walsh | HW Planning
Subject: RE: SHD @ Coolflugh, Cloghroe, Tower, Cork
Date: 25 May 2021 17:26:00
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Hi Michelle
 
We act on behalf of Cloghroe Development Limited who intend to submit a Strategic Housing Development (SHD)
at Coolflugh, Cloghroe, Tower, Cork. You may recall that I contacted you previously regarding this development in
November 2020 and we are now progressing towards lodgement of the application in next month.
 
The proposed development comprises the construction of 198 no. residential units consisting of 117 no. dwelling
houses (57 no. four bed, 38 no. 3 bed and 22 no. 2 bed units) and 81 no. apartments/duplexes (4 no. 3 bed, 35
no. 2 bed and 42 no. 1 bed). 27 no. of the proposed apartment units are designed as step-down units for elderly
occupants. The proposed development will be served by a two storey 42 no. child capacity creche (circa 405 sqm
gross floor area) to be located to the south of proposed entrance. The proposed creche is equipped with a
dedicated play area to the rear, drop off facilities and car parking.
 
We consider the proposed design, location and size of the proposed creche is consistent with current policies and
guidance contained in the ‘Childcare Guidelines for Planning Authorities 2001’, ‘Circular PL3/2016’ relating to
childcare facilities under the early Childhood Care and Education (ECCE) Scheme, ‘Universal Design Guidelines for
Early Learning and Care Settings 2019’ and the 2018 Apartment Guidelines. Section 4.7 of the 2018 Apartment
Guidelines which states that:

‘’One-bedroom or studio type units should not generally be considered to contribute to a
requirement for any childcare provision and subject to location, this may also apply in part or whole,
to units with two or more bedrooms’’.

 
Of the proposed units, 99 no. are 1 or 2 bedroom units representing 50% of the total number of units on site.
Appendix 2 of the ‘Childcare Guidelines for Planning Authorities 2001’ establishes a standard that where 75
dwellings are constructed, one childcare facility providing a minimum of 20 childcare places is considered
reasonable. In accordance with section 4.7 of the 2018 Apartment Guidelines childcare provision is being made in
full for the 99 no. 3 and 4 bedroom units in the proposed scheme. The minimum requirement for this number of
dwellings would be a 20 no. child capacity creche. The proposal to provide for a 42 -place childcare facility is
therefore in excess of and fully complaint with this standard.
 
The proposed location of the future creche to the south of the proposed residential site entrance represents the
most appropriate location within the subject site. From an operational perspective, the proposed location is
appropriate given it will be within a short walking distance from Cloghroe National School to the south east and
visual presence along the R617 will ensure that the childcare needs for the growing population of Tower will be
catered for.  Informed by your previous comments, the proposed creche layout has evolved from that previously
proposed to provide for the following:
 

§  The area of the proposed baby room has been increased to include additional space
for fixed furniture.

§  A separate milk preparation space has been included.

§  The boiler within the building has been relocated further away from the proposed
baby sleeping room.  A changing room has been included between sleep room and
boiler to mitigate any potential noise issues.

§  The relocated changing room has been provided with a window for ventilation.

mailto:jobrien@hwplanning.ie
mailto:mryan@corkchildcare.ie
mailto:hwalsh@hwplanning.ie

Kind Regards,
Michelle

Michelle Ryan

Childcare Development Worker (Blarney/Mallow)
Cork County Childcare Committee

The Market House

Buttevant

Mallow

Co. Cork

PS1FRDO

Tel: 022 23880
Mob: 087 9398905
Email: mryan@ corkchildcare.ie

Web: www.corkchildcare.ie
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§  The proposed pre-school room has an increased capacity of 20 no. children. This is
the maximum number of children that can be accommodated on the first floor
without the need for a second stairs for fire safety reasons.

§   A changing room has been included within the toilet area for the toddler room and a
milk preparation area has also been provided.

§  The proposed ground floor layout ensures that there is direct access to the
proposed external play area for pre-school children when they enter the ground
floor corridor.

§  In accordance with Tulsa guidelines, there will be 3 no. adults associated with the
baby room.

§  A proposed sluice room has been included at ground floor level.

 
We consider the proposed creche facility will serve as an important community asset and will greatly benefit the
proposed scheme. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any queries
 
Kind Regards
 
John O’Brien
Planning Consultant
 
-----------------------
HW Planning 
5 Joyce House
Barrack Square,
Ballincollig, Co. Cork

-----------------------
hwplanning.ie
+353 (0)21 4873250
+353 (0)87 1332570

-----------------------
LinkedIn

 
-----------------------
The content of this email may be confidential or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient you should delete this email and not read,
disclose, distribute, copy, use or reply upon the information contained therein. If you have received this correspondence in error, please notify HW
Planning immediately. We are committed to ensuring the security and protection of the personal information that we process in full accordance with
our data management policy.

 
 

From: Michelle Ryan <mryan@corkchildcare.ie> 
Sent: 25 November 2020 13:14
To: John O'Brien | HW Planning <jobrien@hwplanning.ie>
Cc: Harry Walsh | HW Planning <hwalsh@hwplanning.ie>
Subject: SHD @ Coolflugh, Cloghroe, Tower, Cork
 
Hi John, Harry,
I received your email from Cork City Childcare a few days ago. I have looked at the documents
attached and I have a few comments based on my observations and Early Years experience:
 

1. Baby room for 9 babies. My concern is that the measurement is accurate for 9 babies but I
am not sure that the space allows for fitted furniture.

http://www.hwplanning.ie/
tel:+353%2021%20487%203250
tel:+353%2087%20753%202580
http://linkedin.com/


2. Is the X beside the baby room for milk preparation purposes as this is a requirement?
3. The boiler, stairs and lift are all quite close to the baby sleeping room. I wonder about the

noise levels in the room. Is there an emergency exit from the sleep room as this  is a
requirement?

4. Does the changing room have adequate ventilation or a window?
5. ECCE 19 children. It is always more viable for a creche if an ECCE room can hold 22 children

as the adult child ratio is 1:11.
6. Toddler Room. My query is in relation to a changing area for toilet training purposes and a

milk preparation area. I noticed an are marked X close to the Managers office?
7. Outdoor area. Is this to be used by the three groups of children as I noticed that the rooms

have a door to go directly out on to the area? My concern currently would be in relation to
the large congregation of children in the one area. In relation to the preschool children,
they may have to all go through the lobby and downstairs to access the play area.

8. Is there a plan for adequate storage space for the rotation of toys an equipment?
9. Adult toilets. My concern is that the staff downstairs may have to use the upstairs toilets.

The requirement is one toilet per 8 adults.
10. Food preparation area. A full day care creche catering for 42 children would need a full

kitchen fitted and a separate toilet for the chef. Three sinks are required. Is there a plan for
a sluice room close by as this is a requirement?

 
Finally, I am querying the proposed location of the creche on the site plan. From my experience, a
service if often more sustainable if it was located closer to the front of the development as it may
also serve families from outside of the area and they would not have to drive through the estate. 
I was confused about the roadway entering the creche or which route it will be accessed from?
 
Cork County Childcare has identified that there would be a need for additional childcare provision
in the Blarney/Cloghroe should this new development be completed as approx. 160 of the units
may be attractive for young families. There are currently only two full day care facilities in the
Blarney area. There are a number of sessional pre-schools in the area also (i.e 3 hours per day).
 
According to the 2016 CSO data, the total population of Blarney is 2,726. This averages at
approximately 259 children under the age of 5. It calculates at approx.. 43 births per year for the
area.
 
The National Childcare Scheme (NCS) commenced in November 2019  www.ncs.gov.ie  This has
increased the demand for childcare in the county in particular for younger children and we have
already established a shortage of full day care provision in the county based on population figures
alone.
 
I will also refer you to the following documents:

Universal Design Guidelines for Early Learning and Care Settings. These were published in
2019 https://aim.gov.ie/universal-design-guidelines-for-elc-settings/
Quality Regulatory Framework (QRF) for full and part-time services
https://www.tusla.ie/uploads/content/4566-TUSLA_QRF_DAY_CARE_LR.pdf

 
If you have any further queries, please feel free to contact me again.
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ncs.gov.ie%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cjobrien%40hwplanning.ie%7C151c266eec0a4aded6e108d89144005d%7Ca17a8d1d150c4493a296918177e64d5b%7C0%7C1%7C637419068910528177%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=8ml1cGuJ6ZqOxFLjKiwGEuUWcsiSe1YLMOKmv9Phy94%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faim.gov.ie%2Funiversal-design-guidelines-for-elc-settings%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cjobrien%40hwplanning.ie%7C151c266eec0a4aded6e108d89144005d%7Ca17a8d1d150c4493a296918177e64d5b%7C0%7C1%7C637419068910538174%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=SaPm2FWw2pzM8TGClUtN8NfFbxIzFCwhS0Fq9uhpbxA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.tusla.ie%2Fuploads%2Fcontent%2F4566-TUSLA_QRF_DAY_CARE_LR.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Cjobrien%40hwplanning.ie%7C151c266eec0a4aded6e108d89144005d%7Ca17a8d1d150c4493a296918177e64d5b%7C0%7C1%7C637419068910538174%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=5sA4pvnZ4n7L5HvxRLTRUGC1CTya8MK%2FkN4%2B%2BhyNPBo%3D&reserved=0




From: John O"Brien | HW Planning
To: Janet Dennehy
Cc: Harry Walsh | HW Planning
Subject: RE: SHD @ Coolflugh, Cloghroe, Tower, Cork
Date: 25 May 2021 12:02:00
Attachments: 20068_P_003 SITE PLAN.PDF

20068_P_1101-1104 creche.pdf
20068_P_003 SITE PLAN creche.pdf

Hi Janet

We act on behalf of Cloghroe Development Limited who intend to submit a Strategic Housing Development (SHD) at
Coolflugh, Cloghroe, Tower, Cork. You may recall that I contacted you previously regarding this development in
November 2020 and we are now progressing towards lodgement of the application in next month. We have been
advised that Cork City Childcare Committee is a statutory consultee for the development and we will be providing you
with a full copy of the application once submitted. The application will contain a ‘Childcare Needs Assessment’.

The proposed development comprises the construction of 198 no. residential units consisting of 117 no. dwelling
houses (57 no. four bed, 38 no. 3 bed and 22 no. 2 bed units) and 81 no. apartments/duplexes (4 no. 3 bed, 35 no. 2
bed and 42 no. 1 bed). 27 no. of the proposed apartment units are designed as step-down units for elderly occupants.
The proposed development will be served by a two storey 42 no. child capacity creche (circa 405 sqm gross floor
area) to be located to the south of proposed entrance. The proposed creche is equipped with a dedicated play area to
the rear, drop off facilities and car parking.

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

‘’One-bedroom or studio type units should not generally be considered to contribute to a requirement for
any childcare provision and subject to location, this may also apply in part or whole, to units with two or
more bedrooms’’.

Of the proposed units, 99 no. are 1 or 2 bedroom units representing 50% of the total number of units on site.
Appendix 2 of the ‘Childcare Guidelines for Planning Authorities 2001’ establishes a standard that where 75 dwellings
are constructed, one childcare facility providing a minimum of 20 childcare places is considered reasonable. In
accordance with section 4.7 of the 2018 Apartment Guidelines childcare provision is being made in full for the 99 no.
3 and 4 bedroom units in the proposed scheme. The minimum requirement for this number of dwellings would be a
20 no. child capacity creche. The proposal to provide for a 42 -place childcare facility is therefore in excess of and fully
complaint with this standard.

The proposed location of the future creche to the south of the proposed residential site entrance represents the most
appropriate location within the subject site. From an operational perspective, the proposed location is appropriate
given it will be within a short walking distance from Cloghroe National School to the south east and visual presence
along the R617 will ensure that the childcare needs for the growing population of Tower will be catered for. 

The proposed creche layout has evolved from that previously proposed to provide for the following:

§  The area of the proposed baby room has been increased to include additional space for
fixed furniture.

§  A separate milk preparation space has been included.

§  The boiler within the building has been relocated further away from the proposed baby
sleeping room.  A changing room has been included between sleep room and boiler to
mitigate any potential noise issues.

§  The relocated changing room has been provided with a window for ventilation.

§  The proposed pre-school room has an increased capacity of 20 no. children. This is the

mailto:jobrien@hwplanning.ie
mailto:janet@corkcitychildcare.ie
mailto:hwalsh@hwplanning.ie
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maximum number of children that can be accommodated on the first floor without the
need for a second stairs for fire safety reasons.

§  A changing room has been included within the toilet area for the toddler room and a
milk preparation area has also been provided.

§  The proposed ground floor layout ensures that there is direct access to the proposed
external play area for pre-school children when they enter the ground floor corridor.

§  In accordance with Tulsa guidelines, there will be 3 no. adults associated with the baby
room.

§  A proposed sluice room has been included at ground floor level.

We consider the proposed creche facility will serve as an important community asset and will greatly benefit the
proposed scheme. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any queries.

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
The content of this email may be confidential or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient you should delete this email and not read, disclose,
distribute, copy, use or reply upon the information contained therein. If you have received this correspondence in error, please notify HW Planning
immediately. We are committed to ensuring the security and protection of the personal information that we process in full accordance with our data
management policy.
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